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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of ADD TECHNOLOGTES (tNDtA) L|M|TED,

Report on the Financial Statements

Opinion

we have audited the financial statements of ADD TEcHNoLoGrEs (rNDrA) LrMrrED (,,the compd'y,,), whichcomprise the batance sheet as at 31st March 2021, and the statement of profit and Loss (inctuding othercomprehensive lncome), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year thenended on that date' and a summary of the silnificant accounting poticies and other exptanatory information(hereinafter referred to as ,,the financial statements,,).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the exptanations given to us, theaforesaid financial statements give the information required by the companies Act, 2013 (,,the Act,,) in themanner so required and give a true and fair view in confoimity with the Indian Accounting standardsprescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the companies ltndian Accounting standards) Rutes, 2015,as amended' ("lnd AS") and other accounting principtes generalty accepted in India, of the state of affairs ofthe company as at March 31, 2021, the Profit and totat comprehensive income, changes in equity and itscash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

we conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specifiedunder section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). out r"iponiiLititiu, under thoie ltandards are further described inthe Auditor's Responsibitities for the Audit oi ft,e Financiat statements section of our report. we areindependent of the company in accordance with the code of Ethici iisued by the Institute of charteredAccountants of India (lc'Al) tbgether with.the inJepenoence requirements that are retevant to our audit ofthe financial statements under the provisions of the Act and tr,u RurL, made thereunder and we havefutfitted our other ethicat responsibi[ities in u..orJun." with the-s.e requirements and the tcA's code ofEthics' we betieve that the audit evidence we r,uu" ooiiined is sufficieni'ino appropriate to provide a basisfor our audit opinion on the financiat statements.

Information other than the Financial statements and Auditor,s Report Thereon

The company's Board of Directors is responsibte for the preparation of the other information. The otherinformation comprises the information inctuded in the Board's Report inctuding Annexures to Board,s Reportand sharehotder's lnformation, but does not inctude the financial statements and our auditor,s reportthereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibitity is to read the other informationand' in doing so' consider whether the other information is materiatty inconsistent with the financialstatements or our knowtedge obtained during the course of our audit or oiherwise appears to be materiattymisstated.

Head office : 88 Middleton Street,64 Ceetanjali, Kolkata 700071, lndia
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lf' based on the work we have performed, we conctude that there is a material misstatement of this otherinformation, we are required to report that fact. we have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management and Those charged with Governance for the Financial statements

The company's Board of Directors is responsibte for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act withrespect to the preparation of these financiat statements that give a true and fair view of the financiat position,
financiat performance (changes in Equity), totat comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash ftows ofthe company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principtes generatty accepted in India. Thisresponsibitity atso inctudes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions ofthe Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting frauds and otherirregutarities; selection and apptication of appropriate accounting poticies; making judgments and estimatesthat are reasonabte and prudent; and design, imptementation and maintenance of adequate internat financiatcontrots, that were operating effectivety for ensuring the accuracy and compteteness of the accountingrecords, retevant to the preparation and presentation ir tn" financiat statements that give a true and fairview and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

ln preparing the financiat statements, management is responsibte for assessing the company,s abitity tocontinue as a going concern, disctosing, as appticabte, matters retated to going concern and using the goingconcern basis of accounting untess management either intends to tiquidate the company or to ceaseoperations, or has no reatistic atternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsibte for overseeing the company's financiat reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibility

our objectives are to obtain reasonabte assurance about whether the financial statements as a whote are freefrom material misstatement, whether due to fraud oruitot, and to issue an auditor,s report that inctudes ouropinion' Reasonabte assurance is a high levet of assurance, but is not u g;urintee that an audit conducted inaccordance with sAs witt atways deteCt a materiat misstatement when iiexists. Misstatements can arise fromfraud or error and are considered materiat if, individuatty or in the iggr";ut", they coutd reasonabty beexpected to inftuence the economic decisions of users taken on the oasli6f t-hese financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professionat judgment and maintain professionalskepticism throughout the audit. We atso:

' ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due tofraud or error, design and perform audit.proceduresresponsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence thatis sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. rhe riik of not detecting a materiatmisstatement resutting from fraud is higher than for one resutiing from urror, as fraud may invotve cottusion,forgery, intentiona[ omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internaI controt.

' obtain an understanding of internat financiat controls retevant to the audit in order to design auditprocedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section r+:i:ttil of the Act, we are atsoresponsibte. for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financiat controtssystem in ptace and the operating effectiveness of such controts.

I
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' Evatuate the appropriateness, of accounting poticies used and the reasonabteness of accountingestimates and retated disclosures made uy runig"r"u,it.'

' conctude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,based on the audit evidence obtained, whethe;;;;t";;.t uncertainty exists retated to events or conditionsthat may cast significant doubt on the company'i .nitiiv i" continue as a going concern. lf we conctude thata material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in ou-r auditor,s report to the retateddisctosures in the financiat statements or, if such disctosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion" ourconctusions are based on the audit eviden." ooiiin"J 6i" the date of oulirdltor,, report. However, futureevents or conditions may cause the company to cease to continue as a going concern.

' Evatuate the overatl presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, inctuding thedisctosures' and whether the financial tluturuntt [ir"t"nt the undertying transactions and events in amanner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiatity is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individuatty or in aggregate,makes it probabte that the economic decisions of a reasonibty knowtedgeabte user of the financiaI statementsmay be inftuenced'. we consider quantitatlve m-ateriitiiv .ra quatitatiire iuittrc in (i) ptanning the scope ofour audit work and in evatuating the results or ou. woikl ano (ii) to uuuirui" the effect of any identifiedmisstatements in the financiat stitements"

we communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the ptanned scope andtirning of the audit and significaniaudit fin?ing;,ilirli;i any!igniricint deficiencies in internat controt thatwe identify during our audit.

we also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have comptied with retevant ethicatrequirements regarding independenle, and to .or*rni*te with them att retationships an<J other mattersthat may reasonabty be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicabte, retated safeguards.
Report on Other Legaland Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a' we have sought and obtained att the information and exptanations which to the best of our knowtedgeand betief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b' in our opinion proper books of account as required by taw have been kept by the company so far as it
. . appears from our examination of those books

c' the Batance sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss inctuding other comprehensive income, thestatement of change in equity and the statement of cash ftows deatt with by this report are in agreementwith the books of account.

d' in our opinion, the aforesaid financiat statements compty with the lndian Accour.rting Standardsprescribed under section 133 of the Act, read with Rute 7 of the companies (Accounts) Rutes, 2015.
e' on the basis of written representations received from the directors of the company as on 31sr March2021' and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disquatifiecl as on 31* March2421 , from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act.

-
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f' with respect to the adequacy of the internal financiat controts over the financiat reporting of thecompany and the operating effectiveness of such controts, refer our separate report in Annexure ,A,.
our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of thecompany's interna[ financiat controts over financiat reporting.

g' In our clpinion and to the best of our information and according to the exptanations given to us, thecompany has paid remuneration to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions ofsection 19T of the Act.

h' with respect to the other matters to be inctuded in theAuditor's Report in accordance with Rute 11 ofthe companies (Audit and Auditors) Rutes, 2014, (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of ourinformation and according to the exptanations given to us:

i' The company does not have any pending titigations which woutd impact its financial position.

ii' The company did not have any long-term contracts inctuding derivative contracts for whichthere were any material foreseeabte [osses.

iii' There are no items which were required to be transferred, to the Investor Education andprotection Fund by the Company.

2' As required by the companies (Auditor's Report) order, 2016 (,,the order,,) issued by the centratGovernment of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the Annexure ,B, a statement onthe matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For Maheshwari & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. : 31 1009E

Sateesh Patil
Partner
Membership No.:227311
UDIN: 2122731 1AMMU541I

Place: Bengaturu
Date: 29-06-2021

I
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Annexure - A to the Independent Auditors, Report

(Refer to in Paragraph 1(f) under "Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements,, section of ourreport to the members of ADD TEcHNoLocf Es (tNDtA) LlMtrED of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial controls under clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Sectio n 143of the companiesAct, 2013 (.,the Act,')

we have audlted the internai financiat controls over financiat reporting of ADD TEcHNoLoGlEs (lNDlA)LlMlrED ("the company") as of 31't M.arch 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the financiat statements ofthe Company for the year errded on that date.

Management's Responsibitity for Internal Financial controls
The company's management is responsibte for estabtishing and maintaining internal financiat controts basedon the ittternal control over financiat reporting criteria estabtished by the corpuny considering the essentiaIcomponents of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of lnternat Financiat contrcls o'erFinancial Reporting issued by the lnstitute of chartered Accountants of India (,lcAl,). These responsibititiesinctude the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financiat controts that wereoperating effectively for ensuring the orderty and efficient conduct of its business, inctuding adherence tocompany's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, theaccuracy and compteteness of the accounting records, and the tirnety preparation of retiabte financiatinformation, as reguired under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility

our responsibitity is to express an opinion on the company's internal financiat controts over financiat reportingbased on our audit' we conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of lnternalFinancial controts over Financiat Repor:ting (the "Guidance Note,,) and the standards on Auditing, issued bylcAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10)of the companies A.t,;; j, ;;#;ni appticaoteto an audit of internal financiai controts, both appticabte to an audit of Internal Financial contrcts and, bothissued by the Institute of chartered Accountants of India. Tfrose standards and the Guidance Note require thatwe compty with ethical requirements and ptan and perform the audit to obtain reasonabte assurance aboutwhether adequate internal financiat controts over financiat reporting was estabtished and maintained and ifsuch controls operated effectiver.y in a[[ materiaI respects.

cur aucit invotves perfor-ming procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internat financiatcontrols system over financiai reporting ancl their operating effectiveness. our audit of interrrat financiatcontrols over financiat reporting inctuded obtaining an understanding of internal financiat controts overfinancial reporting, assessing the risk that a materia[ weakness exists, and testing and evatuating the desigrrand operating effectiveness of internat control based on the assessed risk. The procedures setected depencJon the auditor's judgment, inctuding the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financiatstatements, whether due to fraud or error.
we betieve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basisfor our audit opinion on the company's internal financial controts system over financial reporting.

I
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Meaning of lnternal Financiar controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financiat control over financiat reporting is a process designed to provide reasonabte
assurance regarding the retiabitity of financiat reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
externa[ purposes in accordance with generatly accepted accounting principtes. A company's internaI financiat
contro( over financiat reporting inctudes those poticies and procedures tnai (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonabte detait, accuratety and fairty reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assetsof the company; (2) provide reasonabte assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generatty accepted accounting principtes, and thatreceipts and expenditures of the company are being made onty in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonabte assurance regarding prevention ortimety detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that coutd have amateria[ effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financiat Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent timitations of internal financiat controts over financial reporting, inctuding thepossibitity of cottusion or improper management override of controts, material misstatements due to error orfraud may occur and not be detected. Atso, projections of any evatuation of the internal financiat controtsover financiat reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internat financiat control overfinancial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of comptiance
with the poticies or procedures may deteriorate

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in att material respects, an adequate internat financiat controts system overfinancial reporting and such internal financial controts over financial reporting were operating effectivety asat 31st March 2021, based on the internatcontrotover financiat reporting criteria estabtished by the Company
considering the essentiat components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controts over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of lndia

For Maheshwari & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 31100gE

Sateesh Patil
Partner
Membership No.: 227311
UDIN: 21227311AMMU5419

Place: Bengaturu

Date:29-06-2021

I
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Annexure - B to the Independent Auditors' Report

Referred to in paragraph 2 under "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' Section of our

report to the members of ADD TECHNOLOGIES (lNDlA) LIMITED of even date.

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the financial

statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information and exptanations given to us and

the books of account and other records examined by us in the norma[ course of audit, we report that:

(i) In respect of company's fixed assets:

(a)The Connpany has maintained proper records showing futl particutars, inctuding quantitative
detaits and situation of fixed assets.

(b)The fixed assets have been physicatty verified by the management during the year and no material

discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our opinion, the frequency of verification of the
fixed assets is reasonabte having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.

(c) The Company does not have any immovabte property. Accordingty, the provisions of ctause 3(i)
(c) of the Order are not appticabte.

(ii) The management has conducted physicat verification of inventory at reasonable intervats
during the year and no material discrepancies between physical inventory and book records
were noticed oh physicat verification.

(iii) The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to Companies, firms, timited
tiabitity partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the
Companies Act, 2013, accordingty provisions of clause 3(iii)(a), (b) & (c) of the order are not
appticable.

(iv)

(v)

In our opinion the, company has comptied with the provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the Act

in respect of [oans, investments, guarantees, and security

The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act
and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rutes, 2014 (as amended). Accordingty, the
provisions of ctause 3(v) of the Order are not appticabte.

To the best of our knowtedge and betief, the Central Government has not specified maintenance
of cost records under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act, in respect of Company's
products/services. AccordingLy, the provisions of ctause 3(vi) of the Order are not appl.icabte.

(vi)



MAHESHWARI & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

(vii) According to the information and exptanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

Undisputed statutory dues inctuding provident fund, emptoyees' state insurance, income-
tax, sates-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, vatue added tax, Goods and
Service tax, cess and other material statutory dues, as appticabte, have generatty been
regutarly deposited to the appropriate authorities, though there has been a stight detay
in a few cases. Further, no undisputed amounts payabte in respect thereof were
outstanding at the year-end for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payabte.

There are no dues in respect of income-tax, sates-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty
of excise and vatue added tax that have not been deposited with the appropriate
authorities on account of any dispute.

(viii) In our opinion and according to the information and exptanations given to us, the Company has
not defautted in the repayment of [oans or borrowings to Government, and banks. The Company
has not avaited any [oans or borrowings from financiat institutions. The Company has not issued
any debentures.

(ix) The Company did not raise any money by way of initia[ pubtic offer or further pubtic offer
(inctuding debt instruments) and term loans during the year. Accordingty, paragraph 3(ix) of the
order is not applicabte.

According to the information and exptanation given to
on the Company by its officers or emptoyees has been
our audit.

ln our opinion, managerial remuneration has been paid (and)/ provided in accordance with the
requisite approvats mandated by the provisions of section 197 of the Act read with Schedute V to the
Act.

(xii) In our opinion and according to the information and exptanations given to us, the Company is not
a Nidhi company. Accordingty, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicabte.

(xiii) According to the information and exptanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with the retated parties are in comptiance with sections
177 and 188 of the Act where appticabte and detaits of such transactions have been disctosed in
the financial statements as required by the appticabte lndian accounting standards.

(xiv) According to the information and exptanations give to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential attotment or private
ptacement of shares or fulty or partty convertibte debentures during the year.

(xv) According to the information and exptanations given to us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons

connected with him. Accordingty, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not appticabte.

(a)

(b)

or
of

(x)

(xi)

us, no material fraud by the Company
noticed or reported during the course
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(xvi) According to the information
records of the ComPanY, The

Reserve Bank of India Act 1934'

For Maheshwari & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 311008E

Sateesh Patil
Partner
MembershiP No.: 727311

UDIN: 71227311 AAAMU541 9

Ptace: Bengaluru
Date: 29'06-2021

and exptanations given to us and based on our examination of the

Companyisnotrequiredtoberegisteredundersection45.lAofthe



ADD TECHNOLOGIES (INDIA) LIMITED

Balance Sheet as at 31st March.2021

Summary of Significant accounting poticies

Contigencies & Commitments

As per our Report of even date.

For Maheswari & Associates

Chartered Accountants

SATEESH PATIL

Partner

Membership No.227311

Place: Bengaturu

Date i 29.06.2021

JIGJZ

Fo[bnd on behatf of the board

Director
DIN:00035800

P[ace: Bengaturu

Date : 29.06.2021

Whote Time Director
DIN:070271 86

(a) Property, ptant and equipment
(b) Capitat Work in Progress

(c) Other Intangible Assets

d) Intangible assets under development
e) Financial assets

- Investments
- Other financial Assets

(f) Deferred tax assets (net)

Current assets
(a) lnventories

) Financiat assets

- Trade receivabtes
- Cash and Cash Equivalents
- Bank batances other than cash and cash equivatent
- Other financiat Assets

) current tax assets (Net)

(d) Other Current Assets

(a) Equity Share capital
(b) Other Equity

(a) Long term Provisions

Current liabilities
(a) Financiat tiabilities
- Borrowings
- Trade payabtes

Totat Outstanding dues of micro and samtI enterprise
Total Outstanding dues to others

- Other financiat tiabitities
(b) Other current liabitities

(c) Short term Provisions

Total liabilities
AL EQUITY AND LIABILTIES

17,140.27

2,822.63

45.00

998.08

8,941.66

25,522.00
1A7A1

l,gzo.ot

52.50

1,581.46

14,655.86

29,947.64 49,185.92

6,362.44

27 ,487.10
51.40

2,537.84

1 0,096.83

5,696.82

2,980.46

5,607.24

30,387.58

1 ,549.45
1,404.46

10,357.45

5,117.04

928.64

55,212.89

85,1 60.53

71,340.00
(32,637.97

71,340.00

(26,821.93)

44,518.O7

3,641.21

3,642.72 3,641 .21

24,336.30

ot-Jo
995.05

3.00

10,694.95

909.08

43,484.36

ot.Jo
7,340.45

3.00

14,1 58.30

2,147.07

85,160.53 1 ,O4,537.78
The notes are an integrat part of these financial statement



ADD TECHNOLOGIES (INDIA) LIMITED

Profit and Loss for the Period ended 31st March. 2021
(Amount in Rs. 000)

For the Year ended
31st March 2021

For the Year ended
31st March 2020

Total lncome

Expenses

Purchase of stock in trade
in inventories of Stock in trade and SDare Darts

Depreciation and Amortisation expenses

Total ExDenses

Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax
from continuing operations

) before tax from continuing operations

Tax Expenses

Current tax
Adjustment of taxiMAT retated to earlier periods

Deferred tax

Income Tax Expense

Profit for the year from Continuing Operations

Comprehensive Income (OCl)

Other comprehensive income not to be
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:

Re-Measurement gains/toss on defined benefit ptans

Income Tax effect
Other comprehensive income to be reclassified to
profit or loss in subsequent periods:

toss/(gain) on FVTOCI equity Securities

Tax effect
Other Comprehensive Income for the year

Total Comprehensive Income for the year

Earnings per share - Basic and Dituted lNominal
ue Rs. '10 per share (PY - Rs. '10 per share)l

89,268.64

1,448.20

83,542.32

641.98

90.716.84

8,635.60

953.23

45,236.42

2,887.56

8,698.25

11,192.43

5,714.65

1,333.45

56,853.02

4,773.23

10,848.64

33,654.73

77,603.48 I ,13,177 .22

13,1 13.36 (28,992.92)

8,509.39

1 3,1 1 3.36 (37,502.31)

1 \q7 7A

4,514.57 t1l 141 q1

6,112.31 (11 ,263.51

(26,238.80)

(37.35)

(301.08)

1,575.63

(396.55

1 ,1 8 5.01

(25,676.42)

The notes are an integral part of these financial statement

5ummary of Significant accounting poIicies

As per our Report of even date.

For /v{aheswari & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm Res.No.311008E

S,ATEESH PATIL

Partner
Membership No.227311

Ptace: Bengaluru

Date : 29.06.2021

Whote Time Director
DIN:070271 86

ANIL I(UfIAR SETHI

Dire(tor
DIN:00035800

Ptace: Bengaturu

Date i 29.06.2021

Fo nd on behalf of the board



ADD TECHNOLOGIES (INDIA) LIMITED

Cash flows for the Period ended 3ist March 2O2i

For the Year ended

31st Mar 2021

For the Year ended

31st March 2020

Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax from Continuing Operatjons

to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses

Finance Expenses

Interest Received

Loss on Sale of Assets

Provision for doubtful debts
Bad debts written off
lmpairment of Intangible Assets under development

Re-Measurement gains on defined benefit ptans

(Decrease)/lncrease in Trade Receivables
(Decrease)/lncrease in Other current assets
(Decrease )/lncrease in Trade & Other payabtes

(Decrease )/lncrease in Other current tiabitities
(Decrease )/lncrease in Provisions
(Decrease) / Increase in lnventory

Income tax paid / (Refund)

Net cash flows from operating activitjes

flow from investing activities
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment
Sate of Property, Ptant and Equipment
Movement in Capital Work in progress

Movement in intangibte asset under devetopment

cash flows used in investing activities

flow from financing activities
Long Term Borrowings

lnterest Received

Finance Expense (Net)

Net cash flows froml(used in) financing activities

t increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

at the end of the year( Refer nore no

13,113.36

8,698.25

2,887.56

(1 ,077._77

30.00

537.01

(1,575.63

7,870.48

(2,341.1

(1,236.48)

(755.20)

(37,502.28)

10,848.64

4,773.22

7,304._09

302.64

(662.381

6,303.93

226.40

5,666.18

76.55

4,264.05

160.32
14,313.67

1,779.46

3,447.43

3,389.66

(7,843.-25

11 ,147.19
(3,318.72 )

(19,148.07)

1,448.20

(4,474.98)

641.98

(4,773.22)

20,587.43)

(1,498.05)

't,549.45

Changes arrising from Borrowinqs for he year ended 31st Mar 202
1st April 2020 Proceeds Repa) Fair Value Chanees 31st Mar 20213orrowings - Current (Refer Note-14) 43.484.37 19,148.07 24,336.30

43,484.3 't9,148.0) 24,336.30

As per our Report of even date,

For Maheswari & Associates
Chartered Accountants

SATEESH PATIL

Partner

Membership No.227311

Ptace: Bengaturu

Date :29.06.2021

WILLIAA{ D'sOUZA

Whole Time Director
DIN:070271 86DIN:00035800

Ptace: Bengaturu

Date :29.06.2021

in Liability arrising from Borrowings for the year ended 31st March 020

Particulars 1st April 2019 Proceeds Repayment
Fair Value Changes

3 1 st March 2020
rg5 - LUrrenI (Kerer Note-14) 47 ,959.3, 4,474.98 43,484.37

47,959.34 4,474.98 43,484.37

ANIL KIJ''GR SETHI

Dirf,tor
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Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2020

A) Equity Share Capital

(Amount in Rs. O00)

Particulars As at 31st March,
202'l

As at 31st March,
20zo

Equity shares of Rs 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid

Balance at the beginning of the reporting period

Changes in equity share capital during the year
71,340 71,340

Balance at the end of the reporting period 71,34O 71,340

B) Other Equity

For the nded 31st March 2021

For the year ended 31st March 2020

The notes are an integral part of these financial statement
As per our Report of even date.

For Maheswari & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg.No.31'1008E

SATEESH PATIL

Partner

Membership No.227311

Ptace: Bengaturu

Date :29.06.2021

For and on behatf of the board

DIN:00035800

Place: Bengaluru

Date :29.06.2021

(Amoun

(Amount in Rs. 000)

000)

Whole Time Director
DIN:07027186

ln Ks

Particu lars Retained earnings
Other

comprehensive
income

Total

Balance as at 1st April 2020

Profit for the year
Adjustments

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax
Total comprehensive income

(31,772.85)

7,001.05

7,001 .05

865.12

1 ,1 85.01

(1,18s.01)

(32,637.97)
7,001.05

't,1 85.01

5,816.04
Balance as at 31st March 2021 (24,771 .BO\ (319.89) (26,821.93)

Particulars Retained earnings
Other

comprehensive
income

Total

Balance as at 1st April 2019

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax

Total comorehensive income

(5,534.05)

(26,238.80)

(26,238.80)

1,427.50

(562.38)

(5 62.38)

(6,961.55)

(26,238.80)

(s62.38)

(2s,676.42',)
Balance as at 31st March 2020 (31,772.85) 86s.12 (32,637.97)



ADD TECHNOLOGIES (INDIA) LIMITED

Notes to financial statements as at 31st March. 202 1

Company background

The company was incorporated in the year 1995 as an engineering and technology expertise organisation and is presently
involved in the area of service detivery for utility consumers by instatling user-friendty 24 hrs x 365 days payment kiosk Att
Time Payment (ATP) for cottecting utility payments for Etectricity bitts, payment of Insurance premiums, Water, Telephone,
Corporation/Municipatity Tax, Education/Examination fees and others and Recentty company entered into Business of GPS

Tracking Solutions. Provides Tracking Solutions for Vehicles, Humans, Pet Animals and Assets and Sowftware Desiqn &
Devetopment.

2 Significant accounting policies

2.01 Basis of preparation and presentation
(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (lnd AS) notified under the

Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Rutes,2015 and relevant amendement rules issued there after.

Accounting poticies have been consistently apptied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initiatty adopted or

a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting poticy hitherto in use.

(b) Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention and on an accrual basis, except for the

foltowing materiat items that have been measured at fair value as required by retevant Ind AS:

i. Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair vatue (refer account'ing poticy on financial instruments) and

ii. Defined benefit and other [ong-term employee benefits.

(c) Going Concern Concept and its impact on the company
Considering the unpresidented gtobat pendamic of covid 19 and the stow down of business druing the 23rd March 2O2O to
'17th May 2020, the management had made the assessment of going concern abitity of the company. Based on the
management assessment on its business impact during the lock down, which was common across the industry, it had no
specific impact to the company's operation as such. Accordingty the financial statements have been prepared on going
concern basis.

(d) Use of estimates and judgement

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgments, estimates and

assumptions that affect the apptication of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, tiabitities, income and

expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a periodic

basis. Rev'isions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future
Deriods affected.

(e) Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and tiabitities in the batance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset is
treated as current when it is:
- Expected to be reatised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle,
- Hetd primarily for the purpose of trading,
- Expected to be reatised within twelve months afterthe reporting period, or
- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settte a liabitity for at least twetve months
after the reporting period.
At[ other assets are ctassified as non-current.

A tiabitity is current when:
- lt is expected to be settted in normal operating cycte,
- It is hetd primarity for the purpose of trading,
- lt is due to be settted within twetve months after the reporting period, or
- There is no unconditional right to defer the setttement of the tiability for at least twetve months after the reporting
oeriod.
The Company ctassifies atI other [iabitities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabitities are classified as non-current assets and tiabilities.
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their reatisation in cash and cash
equivalents. The Company has identified twetve months as its operating cycte.

(f) Estimation of uncertainties relating to the global health pandemic from COVID-19:

The Company has considered the possible effects that may resutt from the pandemic retating to CoVID - 19 on the carrying
amounts of receivables, payabtes and investments in subsidiaries and associates. In devetoping the assumptions retating to
the possible future uncertainties in the gtobal economic conditions because of this pandemic, the Company, as at the date
of approval of these financial statements has used internal and external sources of information. The Company has
performed sensitivity anatysis on the assumptions used and based on current estimates expects the carrying amount of
these assets witl be recovered. The impact of COVID -19 on the Company's f

,i''ffi
il q4
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estimated as at the date of approvat of these financial statements.
may differ from that
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Notes to financial statements as at 31st March,2021
2.O2 Property, plant and equipment.

under the previous GAAP (lndian GMP), property, ptant and equipment were carried in the batance sheet at their carrvinp
vatue being the cost of acquisition or construction tess accumulated depreciation.
The cost of property, plant and equipment includes freight, duties and taxes and other incidental expenses retating to the
acquisition and insta[ation of the respective assets. The present vatue of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an
asset after its use is inctuded in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met. Borrowing
costs directty attributabte to acquisition or construction of those assets which necessarity take a substantial Deriod of time
to get ready for their intended use are capital.ized.
Advance paid towards the acquisition of assets outstanding at each batance sheet are shown under capital advances. The
cost of property, plant and equipment not ready for their intended use before such date, are disctosed as caD.itat work in
progress.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value:
The method of depreciation adopted and estimated usefu[ life of fixed assets is enumerated betow:

Asset Description Method Useful life adopted Usefu[ life as per
Schedule ll to the
Companies Act,

2013

Civit Infrastructure SLM 5 years 5 years

Ptant & Machinery - Bought out SLM 5 years 1 5 years

Ptant & Machinery - Manufactured SLM 5 years '1 5 years

Office equipments SLM 5 years 5 years

End user devices, such as, desktops, laptops, etc. SLM 3 years 3 years

Furniture and fittings SLM 1 0 years 1 0 years
y'ehicles

SLM B Years 8 Years

The management has identified useful tife of the assets (tangibte), based on the life as prescribed in Schedute ll to the
Companies Act, 201 3. Further the residual vatue is is estimated to be 5% of cost of asset.

2.03 lmpairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset or a group of assets

compris'ing a cash-generating unit may be impaired. lf any such indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an

asset is required, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverabte amount is the higher of an

asset's or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair vatue tess costs of disposat and jts value in use. Recoverabte amount is

determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largety independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverabte amount, the
asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverabte amount.

In assessing vatue in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present vatue using a pre-tax
discount rate that reftects current market assessments of the time vatue of money and the risks specific to the asset. In

determining fair vatue less costs of disposat, recent market transactions are taken into account. lf no sucn transactions can
be identified' an appropriate vatuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation muttiples, quoted
share prices for pubticty traded companies or other avaitabte fair value indicators.
The Company bases its impairment catculation on detaited budgets and forecast calcutations, which are prepared
separatety for each of the CGUS to which the individuat assets are atlocated. These budgets and forecast calculations
generatly cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is catcutated and apptied to project
future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash ftow projections beyond periods covered by the most recent
budgets/forecasts, the Group extrapotates cash ftow projections in the budget using a steady or dectining growth rate for
subsequent years, untess an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed the [ong-term
average growth rate for the products, industries, or country or countries in which the entity operates, or for the market in
which the asset is used.

For assets exctuding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determ'ine whether there is an indication
that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. lf such indication exists, the Group
estimates the asset's or CGU's recoverable amount. A previousty recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has

been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset's recoverabte amount since the last impairment toss was
recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverabte amount, nor
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss unless the asset is

CI

carried at a revatued amount, in which case, the reversat is treated as a

a
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Notes to financial statements as at 3'lst ,t arch, 2021

2.O4 Revenuerecognition
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits witt ftow to the Company and the
revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the fair vatue of
the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractuatty defined terms of payment, net of taxes or duties
coltected on behalf of the government.

The Company uses the percentage-of-comptetion method in accounting for its fixed-price contracts. Use of the percentage-

of-completion method requires the Company to estimate the efforts or costs expended to date as a proportion of the total
efforts or costs to be expended. Efforts or costs expended have been used to measure progress towards completion as there
is a direct relationship between input and productivity.

Further, the Company uses significant judgments white determining the transaction price attocated to performance
obtigations using the expected cost plus margin approach.

Provisions for estimated losses, if any, on uncompleted contracts are recorded in the period in which such tosses become
probabte based on the expected contract estimates at the reporting date.

The specific recognition criteria described below must atso be met before revenue is recoenised.

Other income
Interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (ElR). EIR is the rate that exactty discounts the estimated

future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate,

to the gross carrying amount of the financia[ asset or to the amortised cost of a financiaI tiabitity. When catculating the

effective interest rate, the group estimates the expected cash ftows by considering a[[ the contractual terms of the

financial instrument (for exampte, prepayment, extension, catt and simitar optjons) but does not consider the exDected

credit losses. Interest income is included in finance income in the statement of profit and loss.

Dividends
Revenue is recognised when the Company's right to receive the payment is established, which is generatly when
shareholders approve the dividend.

2.O5 Leases

The Company evaluates if an arrangement quatifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 1 1 6. ldentification of a
lease requires significant judgment. The Company uses significant judgement in assessing the lease term (inctuding
anticipated renewats) and the appticabte discount rate.
The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancetlabte period of a lease, together with both periods covered by an
option to extend the lease if the Company is reasonabty certain to exercise that option; and periods covered by an option to
terminate the lease if the Company is reasonabty certain not to exercise that option. In assessing whether the Company is
reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend a lease, or not to exercise an option to terminate a lease, it consjders a[[
retevant facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive for the Company to exercise the option to extend the
lease, or not to exercise the option to terminate the lease. The Company revises the lease term if there is a chanqe in the
non-cancettable period of a lease.
The discount rate is generalty based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease beinq evaluated or for a
portfolio of leases with simitar characteristics.

2.06 Financiallnstruments
A financiaI instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financiaI asset of one entity and a financiaI tiabitity or equity
instrument of another entitv.

A Financial Assets
a) Classification

The company ctassifies its financial assets in the fottowing measurement categories:
- those to be measured subsequentty at fair vatue (either through other comprehensive income, or tnrougn
profit or loss), and

- those measured at amortised cost.
The ctassification depends on the entity's business model for managing the financiaI assets and the contractual terms of the
cash ftows.
For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses wi[[ either be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income.
For investments in debt instruments, this witl depend on the business model in which the investment is hetd. For
investments in equ'ity instruments, this witt depend on whether the company has made an irrevocable election at the time
of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at fair vatue through other comprehensive income.

b) Initial recognition and measurement
A[l financial assets are recognised initiatty at fair vatue ptus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair vatue
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributabte to the acquisition of the financial asset. purchases or sales of

ptace (regutar way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the d commits to Durchase or setl the
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Notes to financial statements as at 31st ,\ arch. 2021

c) Subsequent measurement
FinanciaI assets carried at amortised cost: A financiaI assets is measured at amortised cost if it is hetd within a business
model whose obiective is to hotd asset in order to cotlect contractual cash ftows and the contractual cash terms of the
financiaI asset give rise on specified dates to cash ftows that are sotety payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding. Interest income from these financial assets is accounted in profit or loss using the effective interest
rate method. lmpairment losses, forex gain / loss and gain / loss on derecognition of financial asset in this category is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair vatue throuqh other comprehensive income (FVTOCI): A financial asset is measured at FVTOCI, if it is
hetd withing a business modet whose objective is achieved by both from cotlection of contractual cash flows and selling the
financial assets, where the assets' cash flows represent sotely payments of principat and interest. Further equity
instruments where the company has made an irrevocable etection based on its business modet, to classify as instruments
measured at FVTOCI, are measured subsequentty at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Debt instruments - Movements in the carrying amount are taken through other comprehensive income (OCl), except for the
recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in
profit and [oss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumutative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is
rectassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised. Interest income from these financia[ assets is included in other
income using the effective interest rate method.
Equity instruments - Movements in the carrying amount are taken to OCI and there is no subsequent rectassification of fair
vatue gains and tosses to profit or toss. Dividend from such'investments are recoqnised in orofit or loss.

FinanciaI assets at fair value throuqh profit or toss (FVTpL): A financiat asset which is not ctassified in any of the above
categories are subsequentty fair vatued through profit or toss. Al[ gains and losses are recognised in profit or [oss.

d) lmpa'irment of financial assets

The company assesses on a forward tooking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried at amortjsed
cost and FVTOCI debt instruments. The impairment methodology apptied depends on whether there has been a significant
increase in cred'it risk. Note 4'l details how the company determines whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk.

For trade receivabtes, the company applies the simplified approach specified by Ind AS '109 Financiat Instruments, which
requires expected lifetime tosses to be recognised from initiat recognition of the receivabtes.

e) Derecognition of financial assets

A financiaI asset is primarity derecognised when:
- The rights to receive cash ftows from the asset have expired, or
- The company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obtigation to pay the
received cash flows in futl without material delay to a third party under a 'pass-through' arrangement; and either (a) the
company has transferred substantiatty a[[ the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the company has neither transferred nor
retained substantiatty atl the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
When the company has transferred its rights to receive cash ftows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantiatly atI of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the
company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the company's continuing involvement. In that case,
the company also recognises an associated tiabitity. The transferred asset and the associated tiabititv are measureo on a
basis that reftects the rights and obligations that the company has reta.ined.

B Financial liabilities
a) Classification

The company classifies its financiaI tiabitities in the fottowing measurement categoses:
- those to be measured subsequentty at fair vatue through profit or loss, and
- those measured at amortised cost.
The classification depends on the entity's business model for managing the financial assets and the contractuat terms of the
cash ftows.

b) Initial recognition and measurement
The company recognises financial tiabitities when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. A[[
financial liabitities are recognized at fair value on initial recognition. Transaction costs that are directty attributable to the
issue of financial liabilities, that are not at fair vatue through profit or [oss, are reduced from the fair vatue on initiat
recognition. Transaction costs that are directty attributabte to the i
loss are expensed in profit or [oss.

tiabitities at fair value throush orofit or
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Notes to financial statements as at 31st March,2O21
c) Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financiaI tiabitities depends on their ctassification, as described betow:
Amortised cost: After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the Effective interest rate (ElR) method. Gains and tosses are recognised in profit or toss when the tiabitities are
derecognised as welt as through the EIR amortisation process.
Amortised cost is catcutated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the ElR. The EIR amortisation is inctuded as finance costs in the statement of profit and toss.

Financial liabilities at fair vatue throuqh profit or [oss: Financiat tiabitities at fair value through profit or loss inctude financial
liabitities hetd for trading and financiat tiabitities designated upon initiat recognition as at fair value through profit or [oss.
FinanciaI tiabitities are ctassified as hetd for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term.
This category also inctudes derivative fjnanciat instruments entered into by the company that are not designated as hedging
instruments in hedge retationships as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are atso ctassified as hetd for
trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.
Gains or losses on tiabitities hetd for trading are recognised in the profit or [oss.
Financiat tiabitities designated upon initial recognition at fair vatue through profit or toss are designated as such at the initiat
date of recognition, and onty if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For tiabitities designated as FWpL, fair vatue gains/
{osses attributabte to changes in own credit risk are recognized in ocl. These gains/ toss are not subsequently transferred to
Statement of Profit and Loss. However, the company may transfer the cumutative gain or toss within equity. Att other
changes in fair vatue of such tiabitity are recognised in the statement of profit or toss. The company has not designated any
financiat tiabitity as at fair value through profit and [oss.

Derecognition of financial Liabilities
A financiat tiabitity is derecognised when the obtigation under the tiabitity is discharged or cancetted or expires. When an
existing financiat liabitity is replaced by another from the same lender on substantialty different terms, or the terms of an
existing tiabitity are substantiatly modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the originat
tiabitity and the recognition of a new tiabitity. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit or [oss.

C Financial guarantee contracts
The fair vatue of financial guarantees is determined as the present vatue of the difference in net cash flows between the
contractuat payments under the debt instrument and the payments that woutd be required without the guarantee or tne
estimated amount that woutd be payabte to a third party for assuming the obtigations.
(i) as Guarantor
Financiat guarantee contracts are recognised as a financial tiabitity at the time the guarantee is issued. The tiabitity is
initialty measured at fair value and subsequentty at the higher of the amount determined in accordance with Ind AS i09 and
the amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation, where appropriate.
Where guarantees in retation to toans or other payabtes of associates are provided for no compensation, the fair vatues are
accounted for as contributions and recognised as part of the cost of the investmenr.

(ii) as Beneficiary
FinanciaI guarantee contracts are recognised as a financiaI asset at the time the guarantee is taken. The asset is initiattv
measured at fair value and subsequentty amortised over the guarantee period.
Where guarantees in retation to toans or other payabtes are provided by group companies for no compensation, the fair
values are accounted for as contributions and recognised as part of equity.

D Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and tiabitities are offset and the net amount is reported in the batance sheet where there is a tegatty
enforceabte right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settte on a net basis or realise the asset and
settle the liability simuttaneousty. The tegatty enforceabte right must not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceabte in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insotvency or bankruptcy of the comapany or rne
counterparty.

2,07 Borrowings
Borrowings are initiatty recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in
profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the estabtishment of loan

facitities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probabte that some or atI of the facitity witt
be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is

probabte that some or atl of the facitity witl be drawn down, the fee is capitatised as a prepayment for tiquidity services and

amortised over the period of the facitity to which it retates.

Borrowings are removed from the batance sheet when the ob{igation specified in the contract is discharged, cancetted or
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financiaI tiabitity that has been extinguished or transferred to
another party and the consideration paid, inctuding any non-cash assets transferred or tiabitities assumed, is recognised in
profit or loss as other gains/(losses).

Borrowings are ctassified as current tiabitities untess the company has an unconditionat right to defer setttement of the
tiabitity for at least 12 months after the reporting period. Where there is a breach of a materiaI provision of a long-term loan
arrangement on or before the end of the reporting period with the effect that the tiabitity becomes payabte on demano on
the reporting date, the entity does not ctassify the tiabitity as current, if the tender agreed, after t[e reporting period and
before the approvat of the financial statements for issue, not to demand payment as a consequence
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Notes to financial statements as at 31st March, 2021
2.O8 INVENTORIES

Raw /vlaterials: Raw materials are valued at purchase cost and other incidental cost which are incurred uD to the olace of
godown of the company using First in First out basis.
Finished goods: lnventories are stated at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined usjng the first-in, first-
out (FlF0) method. The cost of fjnished goods and work in progress comprises raw materiats, other djrect costs and retated
production overheads. Net realisabte vatue is the estimated setting price in the ordinary course of busjness, tess the
estimated costs of comptetion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

2,09 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sate are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. Att other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an
entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost atso inctudes exchange differences to the extent
regdrceo ds an aojustment to the borrowing costs.

Z.1O Taxes

Current income tax
Current income tax assets and tiabitities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantivety enacted, at
the reporting date in the countries where the company operates and generates taxable income.
'Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or Loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the undertying transaction either tn
OCI or directty in equity. Management periodicatty evatuates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations jn

which applicabte tax regutations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Minimum atternate tax ('MAT') paid in a year is charged to the statement of profit and loss as current tax. The company
recognizes MAT credit avaitabte as an asset only to the extent that there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay
normal income tax during the specified period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit is aLLowed to be carrjed forward. ln the
year in which the company recognises MAT credit as an asset in accordance with the Guidance Note on Accounting for Credjt
Avaitable in respect of Minimum Alternative Tax under the lncome tax Act, 1961, the said asset is created by way of credit
to the statement of profit and toss and shown as'MAT credit Entittement'. The company reviews the,MAT credit
entittement' asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent the company does not have convincing
evidence that it witt pay normal tax during the specified period. Deferred tax asset is defined in Ind AS 12 to inctude the
carry forward of unused tax credits. MAT Credits are in the form of unused tax credits that are carried forward by the
company for a specified period of time. Accordingly, MAT Credit Entittement is grouped with Deferred Tax Asset (net) in the
Balance Sheet.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the tiabitity method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and tiabitities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.
'Deferred tax tiabilities are recognised for all taxabte temporary differences, except:

'when the deferred tax tiabitity arises from the initiat recognition of goodwitt or an asset or tiabitity in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxabte profit or
toss;

- in respect of taxabLe temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint
ventures, when the timing of the reversat of the temporary ditferences can be controtted and it is probabte that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeabte future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for alL deductjble temporary differences, the carry fomard of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probabte that taxabte profit witt be avaitabte
against which the deductibte temporary differences, and the carry fomard of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised, except:

- when the deferred tax asset retating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognjtjon of an
asset or liabitity in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxabte profit or loss;

- in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in
joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised onty to the extent that it is probabte that the temporary differences wilt
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxabte profit witl be avaitabte against which the temporary differences can be
utitised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probabte that sufficient taxabLe profit witl be available to attow alt or part of the deferred tax asset to be utiljsed.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become
probabte that future taxabte profits witt allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and tiabitities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to appty in the year when the asset is

reatised or the tiabitity is settled, based on tax rates (and tax [aws) that have been enacted or substantivetv enacted at the
reporting date.

Deferred tax retating to items recognised outside profit or toss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in corretation to the underlying transaction either in
OCI or directty in equity.
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabitities are offset if a tegatty enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxabte entity and the same taxation authority.
Tax benefits acquired as part of a business combination, but not satisfying the criteria for separate recognition at that date,
are recognised subsequentty if new information about facts and circumstances change. Acquired deferred tax benefits
recognised within the measurement period reduce goodwitt retated to that acquisition if they resutt from new information
obtained about facts and circumstances existing at the acquisition date. lf the carrying amount of goodwitt is zero, any
remaining deferred tax benefits are recognised in OCI/ capitat reserve depending on the principte explained for
purchase gains. Al[ other acquired tax benefits reatised are recognised in profit or toss



ADD TECHNOLOGTES (tNDtA) LtMtTED

Notes to financial statements as at 31st March,2021
2.11 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obtigation (tegal or constructive) as a resutt of a past event, it is
probable that an outftow of resources embodying economic benefits wit[ be required to settle the obtieation and a retiabte
estimate can be made of the amount of the obhgation.
lf the effect of the time vatue of money is material, provisions are d'iscounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects,
when appropriate, the risks specific to the liabitity. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent liabilities recognised in a business combination
A cont'ingent tiabitity recognised in a business combination is initiatty measured at its fair vatue. Subsequentty, it is
measured at the higher of the amount that woutd be recognised in accordance with the requirements for provisions above
or the amount initiatty recognised [ess, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with the
requirements for revenue recognition.

2.12 Cash and cash eouivalents
Cash and cash equivalent in the batance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original
maturity of three months or [ess, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Cash flow statement
Cash ftows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit/ ([oss) before tax is adjusted for the effects of
transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrats or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows
from operating, investing and financing activities of the company are segregated.

2.13 Cash dividend and non-cash distribution to equity holders of the parent
The Company recognises a tiability to make cash or non-cash distributions to equity holders of the parent when the
distribution is authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. As per the corporate laws jn
India, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the sharehotders. A corresponding amount is recognised directty in
equlty.
Non-cash distributions are measured at the fair value of the assets to be distributed with fair varue re-measurement
recognised directty in equity.
Upon distribution of non-cash assets, any difference between the carrying amount of the tiabitity and the carrying amount
of the assets distributed is recognised in the statement of prof.it and [oss.

2.14 Earnings per share

The basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit/ (toss) attributable to owner's of the company for the
year by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during reporting period.

The number of shares used in computing diluted earnings/ (toss) per share comprises the weighted average shares

considered for deriving basic earnings/ (toss) per share and also the weighted average number of equity shares which coutd

have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Ditutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the reporting date, unless they have been

issued at a later date. In computing dituted earnings per share, onty potentiaI equity shares that are d.itutive and which

either reduces earnings per share or increase loss per share are included.

2.15 RecentAccountingPronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards.There is no such
notification which wou[d have been appticabte from April j,2021.
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ADD TECHNOLOGTES (tNDtA) L|MTTED

Notes to financial statements as at 31st March,2021

FINANCIAL ASSETS

INTAGIBLE ASSET UNDER DEVELOPMENT

" Intangible asset under devetopment of Rs 34.85 has been capitatized during the year and Value of Rs 5.37 has been written
off to the statement of profit and loss due to cancellation of devetopment few projects.

INVESTMENTS (Amount in Rs 000)

(Amount in Rs O0OI

Particu lars As at
31st Mar 2021

As at
31st Mar 2020

lntangibte Asset under devetopment 3,926.67

Total 3,926.67

Particulars
As at

31st Mar 2021
As at

31st Mar 2020

valued at Fair value through other comprehensive income unless stated
otherw ise

(A) lnvestment in Unquoted Equity Shares (Fully paid up)

15'000 (March 31 , 2020: 15,000 Equity shares of Re I /- Each, futty paid up of ADD
Reattv Limited 45.00 52.50

Total 45.OO 52.sO

Current
Non-Current 45.00 52. s0

Aggregate value of unquoted investments 45.00 52.50
Aggregate amount of Dimunition in value of investments

OTHER NON.CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

(Amount in Rs. 000)

Particulars As at
31st Mar 2021

As at
31st Mar 2020

Fixied Deposit with Maturity more than 12 months " 998.08 1,581.46

Total 998.08 1,581.46
Lying with banks as security against letters of credits and Guarantees issued bv them.



Amount in Rs.

Particulars
As at 31st

Mar 2O21
As at

31st Mar 2020
(Vatued at lower of Cost and Net Realisable Value)
Spares and Consumables

Stock in Trade

Finished Goods

1 AA7 10

4,654.02

266.24
5,607.24

Total 6,362.44 5,607.24

ADD TECHNOLOGTES (tNDtA) LtMtTED

Notes to financial statements as at 31st March. 2021

8 INVENTORIES

9 TRADE RECEIVABLES

Particulars
As at 31st

Mar 2O21
As at

31st Mar 2020

I 
Unsecured considered good

I

I

lOutstanding more than six months from the date they are due for

lpayment, not from invoice date

Others

Unsecured, considered doubtful
Outstanding more than six months from the date they are due for
payment, not from invoice date
Others

Less: Provison for Doutbfu[ Debtors based on expected credit loss method

6,968.09

20,519.02

7,966.30

22,421 .29

27,487.1O

7,304.09

30,387.58

7,304.09

7,304.09

7,304.09

7,304.09

7,304.09

Total 27,487.10 30,387.58

No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the company either severatly or jointty with
any other person. Nor any trade or other receivable are due from firms or private companies respectivety in which
any director is a partner, a director or a member,

1O CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Particulars
As at 31st

Mar 2021
As at

31st lv{ar 2020
Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with bankS:

On current accounts

Cash on hand
49.08

2.32

1,548.75

0.70

lotal 51 .40 1,549.45

Cash at banks earns interest at ftoating rates based on daity bank deposit rates. Short-term deposits are made for
varying periods of between one day and three months, depending on the immediate cash requirements of the
Group, and earn interest at the respective short-term deposit rates.

1 1 BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT

Particulars As at 31st
Mar 2021

As at
31st Mar 2020

Fixed Deposits with maturity more than 3 months and less than
12 months-

2,537.84 1,404.46

Total 2,537.84 1,404.46
- Lying with banks as security against letters of credits and Guarantees issued bv them.



Particulars
As at 31st

Mar 2021
As at

31st Mar 2020

Unsecured considered good unless stated
Interest Accrued on Fixed deposit

Security Deposit batances *

Insurance Claims Receivable **

Other Receivabtes ***

254.38

3,149.37

1 ,82g.gg
4,864.19

1,045.36

2,618.01

1,829.99

4.864.19

Total 10,096.83 10,357.45

ADD TECHNOLOGTES (tNDt,A) LtMtTED

Notes to financialstatements as at 31st March. 2021

12 OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

. The Company has challenged the forfeiture of EMD of Rs 18.25 by BESCOM with respect to the tender dated
19.08.2013 and dated 20.10.2014 invited by BESCOM. After fiting objection and application by respondents, the
hearing was posted on24.2.18 and again re-posted to22.03.2018. BESCOM did not submit the objection eve,n after
two to three hearing dates. BESCOM has gone for an Appeat with Civit court Vide Ref: AS1 57/201t and hearing is
now posted on 02/ 06 /2021.

** The company is having suitable insurance arrangements with Insurance Companies covering atI financiaI losses
occurring due to the theft incidences. The company todged appropriate insurance ctaims from time to time and is
confident of receiving att the pending ctaims fu[[y. Insurance ctaims for a sum of Rs.18.29 Lacs are stitt pending
receivabte from the Insurance Companies, New India Insurance appeated in the Hon'bte High Court. The Case is now
on Hold due to Covid 19 pendemic. The company witt respond on this hearing date. Out of this, during the year
under review, the Company paid an overatl amount of Rs. NIL to CSPDCL towards compensation of cash theft
incidences occurred at various ATP locations as per the terms of contracts with the respective utitity agencies.
Hence, the insurance ctaims todged but are pending have been shown as ctaims receivable in the Batance sheet.

*** Amount Recievable from RCI Cash Managemennt Services. According to Advocates advice the company wit[
approach party (RCl) only after the Claims Received from New India Insurance .

Break up of financial assets

13 OTHER CURRENTASSETS

Particulars As at
31st Mar 2021

As at
31st Mar 2020

lnvestments

Other non-current financiaI Assets

Trade Receivable

Cash and cash equivatents
Other current financiaI Assets

45.00

998.08

27,487.10

51.40

10,096.83

52.50

1,581 .46

30,387.5g

1 ,549.45
5.493.27

Total financial assets 38,678.41 39,064.26

Particulars As at 31st
Mar 2021

As at
31st Mar 2020

Advance paid to vendors

Advance to employees

Prepaid Expienditure

\ \

51 '1 .53

1,554.20

914.73

8.67

919.97

J./X'\ /P;fotal 2,980.46 928.64
i.r:r 

--S



Particulars
As at 3 1 st Mar 2021 As at 31st March 2020

Number Amount (Rs) Number Amount (Rs)

Authorised
Equity shares of Rs.10/- each

lssued, Subscribed & Paid-up

Equity shares of Rs.10/- each, futty paid

8,000.00 80,000.00 8,000.00 80,000.00
8,000.00 80,000.00 8,000.00 80,000.00

7,134.00 71,340.00 7,134.00 71 .340.00

Total 7,134.O0 7 1 ,340.OO 7,134.OO 7 1 ,340.O0

ADD TECHNOLOGIES (INDIA) LIMITED

Notes to financial statements as at 31st March.2021

14 SHARE CAPITAL

(Amount in Rs. 000)

(a) Reconciliation of number of shares

(b) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares
Equity Shares: The company has one class of equity shares having paid-up vatue of Rs.10 per share. Each sharehotder is etigibte for one vote per share
hetd. The company dectares and pays dividends in Indian Rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approvat of the
sharehotders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation, the equity sharehotders are etigibte to
receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of atl preferential amounts. The distribution witl be in proportion to the number of Equity
Shares held be the Shareholder.

sh held holding

(d) Details of shares held by shareholders holdin than 5% of the shares the C

(e) The Company has not altotted any futty paid up equity shares by way of bonus shares nor has bought back any class of equity shares during the period
of five years immediately preceding the batance sheet date nor has issued shares for consideration other than casn.

(f) There are no unpaid calls from director & officers of the company

(g) There are no buy back of shares during the year by the company.

(Amount in Rs. 000)

Particu lars
Equity Shares Equity Shares

As at 31st Mar 2O21 As at 31st March 2020
Number KS Number Rs

lhares outstanding at the beginning of the year 7.134.00 71,340.00 7,134.00 71,340.00
thares lssued during the year

Shares bought back during the year

Shares outstandinq at the end of the vear 7,134.00 71,340.00 7,134.00 71 .340.00

(c Dy nolorng company and subsldtary of

Name of Shareholder and Relationship with the company
As at 31st Mar 2O21 As at 31st March 2020

No. of Shares
held

Amount
No. of Shares

held
Amount

Equity 5hares

)ethi Waste Management Limited 6,266.10 62,661 .00
\DD Reatty Limited 6,266.10 62,661 .00

rggregare In omPany
Name of Shareholder As at 3 1 st Mar 2O21 As at 31st March 2020

No. of Shares
held

% of Holding
No. of Shares

held
% of Holding

Equity Shares

Dethi Waste Manaqement Limited 0% 6,766.10 88%

ADD Reatty Limited 6,766.10 88% 07.
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Notes to financial statements as at 31st March.2O21

15 OTHER EQUITY

(Amount in Rs. 000)

Particulars
As at 31st

Mar 2021
As at 31st

Mar 2020

Retained Earnings

Opening batance

(+) Net Profit/(Net Loss) For the current year

(32,637.97)

5,816.04

(6,961.5s

(25,676.42

Total - Other equity (26,821.93) (32,637.97

Nature and purpose of other reserves:
Retained Earnings: Retained Earnings comprise of the company's accumutated undistributed earnings /
(tosses).

16 LONG TERM PROVISIONS

(Amount in Rs.

Particulars
As at 31st

Mar 2021
As at 31st

Mar 2O2O

Provision for employee benefits (Refer note 39)
For Gratuitv 3,642.72 3,641.21

Total 3,642.72 3,641.21

17 BORROWINGS

* Secured by hyphothication of stock and book debts. Interest being paid as per bank lending rate (presentty

at the rate 8.7%). ( PY .11 .8%)

.. Secured by bank gaurantee. Interest being paid at the rate 9y.. (PY 11.00%to 13.50%)

*"" Loan received from retated parites are repayabte on demand and interest at the rate of Nit (PY 1B%)

Particulars
As at 31st

Mar 2021
As at 31st

Ailar 2020
Secured

From Banks:

Cash credit from Punjab National Bank -

From Others:

Short term loan from NSIC Limited ..

Unsecured

From related parties .*-

12,262.17

2,809.32

9.264.81

12,578.40

6,449.75

24,456.21

Total 24,336.30 43,484.36



ADD TECHNOLOGTES (tNDtA) L|M|TED

Notes to financial statements as at 31st March,2OZl
18 TRADE PAYABLES

(Amount in Rs. 000)

Particulars
As at 31st

Mar 2021
As at 31st

Mar 2O2O
Trade Payables:

Total outstanding dues of micro and smatl enterprises *

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and
smatI enterprises

61.36

995.05

61.36

2,340.45

Total 1,056.41 2,401.91

* As per the requirement of Section 22 of the MS&MED Act,
efforts to obtain the detaits of supptiers covered by the
documents with the company detaits are given betow:

2006, the company has excercised reasonabte
Act, however, as per availabte information /

Particulars As at 31st
Mar 2021

As at 31st
Mar 2020

principal amount and the interest due thereon
Principal

Interest

61.36

0.00

61.36

0.00
The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section
18, along with the amounts of the payment made to the
supplier beyond the appointed day during the year;

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of
detay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond
the appointed day during the year) but without adding t
interest specified under the Act;

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the
end of the year

The amount of further interest remaining due and payab
even in the succeeding years, until such date when
interest dues as above are actualty paid to the sma[[
enterprise, for the purpose of disaltowance as a deductibte

Terms and conditions of the above financial tiabitities:
- Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normatty settted on 45-day terms
- Other payables are non-interest bearing and have an average term of six months
- Interest payabte is normalty settted quarterty throughout the financial year
- For terms and conditions with retated parties, refer to Note 41
For exptanations on the Group's credit risk management processes, refer to Note 45



ADD TECHNOLOGTES (tNDtA) L|M|TED
Notes to financial statements as at 31st March ,2021
19 OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

(Amount in Rs. 000)

Break up of financial liabilities

As at 31st
Mar 2021

As at 31st
Mar 2OZO

Security deposits

Total

As at 31st
Mar 2021

As at 31st
Mar 2020

Borrowings

Trade Payables

Other current financiat tiabitity

24,336.30

1,056.41
43,494.36

2,401.91

3.00

25,395.71 45,899.16

20 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

As at 31st
Mar 2021

As at 31st
Mar 2O2O

Salaries,emptoyee benefit and Other payabte
Reimbursements payable to emptoyees
Statutory Dues payable (inctuding provident fund, Emptoyee
state insurance, GST and TDS)

6,954.63

1,866.36

1,873.96

9,029.91

721.30

3,406.59

1,001.61

10,694.95 14,159.30

21 SHORT TERM PROVISIONS

As at 31st
Mar 2O21

As at 31st
Mar 2OZO

Provision for employee benefits (Refer note 39)
For Compensated absenses

For Gratuity
'/"xQ,

hfl

529.83

1,617.24

2,147.07



ADD TECHNOLOGTES (tNDtA) L|M|TED

Notes to financial statements as at 31st March, 2e21

22 REVENUE FROM OPEMTION

23 OTHER INCOME

24 Purchase of Stock in trade

25 Changes in lnventories of Stock in Trade

(Amount in Rs 000)

(Amount in Rs. 000)

(Amount in Rs 000)

(Amount in Rs. 000)

Particulars For the Year ended
31st March 2021

For the Year ended
31st March 2020

l5ale of Products:

I ces sates

I Software

I otners

I

lSate 
of Services:

ATP & Smart Meater Reading Transactions
GP5 AnnuaI Subscription & Service Charges

Other operating revenues:
Suppty of Manpower seryice & Others

10,163.77

15,850.00

16.52

6,692.78

680.00

2,717.35

26.030.29 10,090.12

57,940.02

3,218.99

64,194.97

8,907.23

61 ,159.01 73,102.2A

2,079.34 350.00

2,079.34 350.00

Total 89,268.64 83,542.32

Particulars For the Year ended
31st March 2021

For the Year ended
31st March 2020

lnterest Income on Bank Deposits
Interest lncome on Security Deposits
Interest on lT Refund

Other Interest
Profit on sale of Fixed Asset

Discount/Diff /Rounded off

251.89

82.22

1,077.77

36.32

334.67

50.'18

122.33

119.92

14.88

Total 1,448.20 641.98

Particulars For the Year ended
31st March 2021

For the Year ended
31st March 2020

GPS Stock 8,635.60 5,714.65

Total 8,63 5.6C 5,714.65

Particulars For the Year ended
31st March 2021

For the Year ended
31st March 2020

Opening stock of Raw materiats and components
Ctosing stock of Raw materiats and components

5,607.24

4,654.01

6,940.69

5,607.24

Decrease / (increase) in stock /.rd"y{-q, 4 953.23 1,333.45

fl
rrf $,J*".-)'*--l \.i/

'-t-i1-;.{,''1"



Particulars For the Year ended
3'lst March 2021

For the Year ended
31st March 2020

lSataries & Wages

Contribution to Provident & Other funds (Refer note 39)

Emptoyees Gratuity (Refer note 39)

Staff MedicaI Insurance Expenses

Staff Wetfare expenses

Staff Recruitment Expenses

38,880.39

4,982.53

1,165.33

31.46

173.08

3.63

48,954.01

6,089.44

882.09

248.47

635.09

43.92

Total 45,236.42 56,853.02

ADD TECHNOLOGTES (tNDlA) LtMtTED

Notes to financial statements as at 31st March, 2021

26 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES

27 FINANCE COSTS

28 DEPRECIATION & AMORTISATION EXPENSES

(Amount in Rs. 000)

(Amount in Rs. 000)

(Amount in Rs. 000)

Particulars For the Year ended
31st March 2021

For the Year ended
31st March 2020

Interest on unsecurred loan

Interest on securred loan

Other finance cost on Borrowings
1,788.93

1,098.63

952.52

2,528.65

1,292.06

Total 2,887.56 4,773.23

For the Year ended
31st March 2021

For the Year ended
31st March 2020

Depreciation on Tangible assets

Amortisation
8,036.1 5

662.10

10,848.64

8,698.25 10,848.64

*N
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Notes to financial statements as at 31st March, 2021

29 OTHER EXPENSES

(Amount in Rs. 000)

For the Year ended
31st March 2021

For the Year ended
31st March 2020

TP Maintenance

PS-Communication Expenses

GPS Maintenance &, Consumabtes

Certification and Quatity Test Control

Freight, Delivery & Transport charges

Advertisement & Digitat Markting

Consultancy & ProfessionaI Charges

Business Promotions
Commision

Rent expenses( Refer Note.32)

raveting & Conveyance

Printing & Stationary

Payment to Auditors.

Insurance Charges

Communication Expenses

Etectricity charges

Rates & Taxes

Office Expenses

Repairs & Maintenance

Profit/Loss on Sale of Fixed Asset

Provison for doubtful Debtors

Bad debts written off
lmpairment of Intangible Assets under development

1,391.22

1,905.58

358.36

346.83

149.98

152.18

654.27

88.85

511.00

1,251.71

1,472.61

279.80

80.00

521.39

481.62

243.20

103.01

211.24

294.15

89.92

38.51

30.00

537.01

275.83

2,038.31

577.60

1,994.19

134.55

710.03

2,257.10

95.1 3

37.25

2,386.20

3,740.07

581.66

60.00

1,792.09

543.63

500.1 6

1,1 55.85

1,002.03

102.47

26.60

103.79

6,235.59

7,304.09

11,192.43 33,654.23

ffi

(Amount in Rs. 000)

machines which were carried* During the last year the company has Written off the assets related to the AT

under the head capital work in progress, as those assets were not usable for
machines for the specific projects.

* Payment to Auditors

30 EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS

Particu lars
For the Year ended

31st March 2021

For the Year ended
31st March 2020

As Auditors:
- Statutory Audit Remuneration
- Tax Audit Remuneration

60 .00

20.00

40.0c

20.0c

Total * 80.00 60.00
* Exclusive of Appticabte Taxes

(Amount in Rs.'000)

Particulars
As at 31st

Mar 2O21

As at 31st
Mar 2020

Write off of Caoital Work in Prosress * 8,509.39

Total 8,509.39

g iqtended agsembty of ATP



ADD TECHNOLOGIES (INDIA) LIMITED

Notes to financial statements as at 31st March,2021
31 INCOMETAXES

i) The following table provides the details of income tax assets and liabilities as at 31st March 2021 and
31st March 2020.

(Amount in Rs. 000)

Particulars
As at 31st

Mar 2021
As at 31st

Mar 202O

lncome Tax Assets

Current lncome Tax Liabitities
5,696.82 5,117 .04

Net Balance 5,696.82 5,117.04

ii) The gross movement in the current tax asset/ ( Liability) for the years ended 31st March 2021 and 31st

March 2020 is as follows:

iii) The Tax Expense recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss for the Year ended 31st March 2021 and
31st March 2020 is as follows:

Particu lars
For the Year ended

31st March 202'l

For the Year ended
31st March 2020

Income Tax expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Comprises:

Current income taxes

Deferred income taxes

Income tax expenses (net)

a ql/ \7 11 ,263.51

4,514.57 1 1 ,263.sI

iv. A reconciliation of the income tax provision to the amount computed by apptying the statutory income
tax rate to the Drofit before income taxes is as below

For the Year ended
31st March 2021

For the Year ended
31st March 2020

Profit before income tax
Effect of expenses not atlowed for tax purposes

Effect of expense allowed for tax purposes

Effect of carryforward losses

Adusted Drofit before tax
Appticabte income tax rate

Computed expected tax expense
Tax expense

Income tax expense charges to the statement of Profit and

loss

13,113

10,401

(6,648)

(1 6,866)

0.26

(37,502)

25,280
(8,652)

(20,873)

0.26

v) Components of deferred income tax assets and liabilities arising on account of Temporary differences
are:

As at 31st
Mar 2021

As at 31st
Mar 2020

Deferred income tax asset

Timing difference on tangibte and intangibte assets

depreciation and amortisation

Business [oss/unabsorbed depreciation

On account of provision for Employee benefits

Fair Vatue Changes- INDAS Adjustment

Others- Provision for Doubtful Debtors

M.AT Credit entitlement
Total deferred tax tiab'itities/ (assets) (net)

8,941 .66

2,520.59

3,430.68

1,085.09

6.24

1,899.06

1 3,058. 1 2

1,561 .63

7 ,929.15
1,367.20

301.08

1,899.06

1,597.74
8,941 .66 14,655.86

Particulars
For the Year ended

31st March 2021

For the Year ended
31st March 2020

Net current income tax asset at the beginning

Income Tax paid

Current lncome tax exDense

Prior Year adjstments(refunds)

lncome tax on other comorehensive income

Net current income tax asset at the end

5,1'17.04

579.78

0.00

4,956.72

1 ,909.79

1 ,749.47
0.00

5,696.82 5 ,117 .O4
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Notes to financial statements as at 31st March, 2021

32 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Capital and Other Commitments:
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for: as at 31st

March2021- Rs. Nit, as at 31st March 2020 - Rs. Nit

Earning Per Share

Basic EPS amounts are catcutated by dividing the profit for the year attributabte to equity hotders of the
parent by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year.

35 Leases

Lease commitments - Company as lessee

The Company has entered into leases for office premises, that are renewabte on a periodic basis and are
cancellable by giving the notice from one month to three months. There are escaulation ctause in the
agreement and there are no restrictions imposed in the lease arranqements. There are no subteases and
contingent rents.

The Company has incurred Rs.1251 .71/- (31 march 2020: Rs. 2,386.20/-) during the year towards minimum
lease payment. The Company is availing the excemption avaitable for short-term and low vatue lease under

33

34

(Amount in Rs.'000)
Particulars As at

31st March 2021

As at
31st March 202O

lCtaims against Companies not acknowtedged as debt

lCtaims towards liquidated damages not acknowledged as debts

lby the Company Against the above, debts of the tike amounts are

lwithhetd by the customers. However, the Company expects no

lmateriat tiabitity to accrue on account of these ctaims
I

Disouted Demands

(a) Income tax
(b) Excise/ Service tax
(c) Sates tax/ VAT

Performance bank guarantees given to various authorities

Corporate guarantees given to banks for financiaI assistance
extended to subsidiaries and other bodies corDorate

7t 774 33,651

The foltowing reflects the income and share data used in the basic and dituted EPS comoutations:

Particu lars
For the Year ended

31st March 2021
For the Year ended

31st March 2020

Net profit availabte for Equity Sharehotders 5,816 (25,676)
Weighted Average number of Equity shares 7,134 7,134
Basic and Dituted Earninqs Per Share 0.82 (3.60)

tND AS 116.
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Notes to financial statements as at 31st March,2021
36 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and tiabitities, and the
accompanying disclosures, and the disctosure of contingent tiabitities. Uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates coutd result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets
or liabitities affected in future periods.

Judgements: In the process of apptying the company's accounting policies, management has made the
fotlowing judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financiat
statements:

Estimates and assumptions: The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation

uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a materiat adjustment to the

carrying amounts of assets and liabitities within the next financial year, are described betow. The company

based its assumptions and estimates on parameters availabte when the financiat statements were Dreoared.

Existing circumstances and assumptions about future devetopments, however, may change due to market

changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the company. Such changes are reftected in
the assumptions when they occur.

lmpairment of non-financial assets: lmpairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating

unit exceeds its recoverabte amount, which is the higher of its fair vatue less costs of disposat and its varue

in use. The fair vatue less costs of disposal catcutation is based on avaitable data from binding sates

transactions, conducted at arm's length, for simitar assets or observabte market prices less incremental costs

for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF modet. The cash ftows are derived

from the budget for the next five years and do not inctude restructuring activities that the company is not
yet committed to or significant future investments that will enhance the asset's performance of the CGU

being tested. The recoverabte amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF modet as wett as the

expected future cash-inftows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes. These estimates are most

relevant to goodwitI and other intangibtes with indefinite usefu[ lives recognised by the company.

Taxes: Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probabte that taxabte

profit witl be avaitable against which the losses can be utitised. Significant management judgement is

required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the tikety

timing and the [eve[ of future taxabte profits together with future tax ptanning strategies.

Fair vatue measurement of financial instruments: When the fair vatues of financiat assets and financiat
tiabitities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets. their
fair vatue is measured using vatuation techniques inctuding the DCF modet. The inputs to these modets are
taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is

required in establishing fair vatues. Judgements inctude considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit
risk and votatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair vatue of
financiaI instruments.

Currency Earnings And Outgo: (Amount in Rs.)

Particulars For the Year ended
31st March 2021

For the Year
ended 31st March

2020
Foreiqn Currency Earninqs

Sates

Foreign Currency Expenses

CapitaI Expenditure
Revenue Expenditure - (lmport of GPS and Handhetd Devices
Spares) 301.77 1,008.90

Total 301 .77 1,008.90

38 There are no reported foreign currency exposures that have not been hedged by a derivative instrument or

otherwise, hence the disctosure of the same is not made.

39 ClFvalue of imports CY Rs 301 .77 Rs (PY Rs 1,008.90).

37
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EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Defined contribution scheme

The details of employee contribution scheme are given below: Durjng the year, the Company has recognized the fotlowing amounts in the Statement of profit and
LOsS:

(Amount in Rs.'000)

For the Year
ended 3'1st March

2021

For the Year
ended 31st March

2020
Employer's Contribution to Provident Fund

Employer's Contribution to Emptoyees' State of Insurance
Employer's Contribution to Supperannuation

Emptoyer's Contribution to LIC-EDLI Insurance Scheme
Employer's Contribution to Nationat Pension Scheme

3,882

913

30

to

131

4,573
1,03'1

245

1Z

278

Total 4,972 6,089

Employers' Contribution to Provident fund and Employee state insurance fund: Company's contribution in respect of provident fund is made to Government
provident fund and Emptoyees sate insurance fund. Where the company has no further obligations to the beyond its annuaI contribution which is periodicauy
contributed.

Supperannuation: Certain emptoyees of the Company participate on a defined contribution ptan. The company has no further obligation to the ptan beyond its
annuat contribution which are periodicatly contributed to a trust fund, the corpus of which is invested with the LlC.

National Pension Scheme: The Company offers its emptoyees benefits under defined contribution ptan in the form of national pension scheme. Nationat pension
scheme covers certain emptoyees on the rolt. Contributions are paid on periodic basis into the fund under statutory arrangements. The contributions are based on a
fixed percentage of the emptoyee's satary as prescribed in the respective scheme.

Defined benefit plans

Gratuity: ln accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act o'f 1977, the Company contributes to a defined benefit ptan (the .,Gratuity ptan,') covering certain
categories of employees. The Gratuity Ptan provides a Iump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, disabitity or termination of employment being an
amount based on the respective employee's last drawn salary and the number of years of emptoyment with the Company.
Summary of fi

As at 31st
Mar 2021

As at
31st Mar 2020

Discount rate
Expected rate of increase in compensation levet of covered emDrovees

6.53%

8.00%

6.41%

8.00%

Summary of Demographic lo ns:

As at 31st
Mar 202'l

As at
31st Mar 2020

Mortatity Rate (as % of IALM (7012-14) (Mod.) Utt. Mortatity Tabte)
Disabitity Rate (as % of above mortatity rate)
WithdrawaI Rate

Normat Retirement Age

Adjusted Average Future Service

1 00.00%

0.00%

11.50%

60 years

39.35 Years

1 00.00%

0.00%

11.50%

60 years

23.57 Years

in the defined benefit obligation: (Amount in Rs.'000)

Particulars As at 3 lst
Mar 2021

As at
31st lv{ar 2020

lDefined 
benefit obligation at the beginning of the year

lCurrent service cost
I

lNet Interest cost

lSub-totat inctuded in Drofit or toss

Benefits oaid
Return on ptan assets (exctuding amounts inctuded in net interest expense)
Actuarial changes arising from changes in demographic assumptions
Actuariat changes arising from changes in financiat assumptions
Experience adjustments
Subtotal inctuded in OCI

Contributions by emptoyer -. 
/ r1: ri - -...

Defined benefit obtigqtion at the end of the year ,;,j.;}f,*i,""1

6,113

1,306

397
1,698

(1,7_39

(65

1,641

1,576

-?
\ 7,648

E I?R

425

512

938

)ru

(s7s)

(300)

6,113

ffi W



changes in the lalr value of plan assets (Amount in Rs.'000)

Particulars As at 31st
Mar 2021

As at
3 1 st Mar 2020

Fair Vatue of P[an Assets at the besinnins
Interest Income

Contributions by employer
Benefit Payments from Plan Assets

Remeasurements - Return on Assets (Exctuding Interest Income)
Fair Vatue of Ptan Assets at the end

854.62

(4.24)

4,225.18
(1,738.83)

3,336.73 854.62

760.61

58.52

388.00

(352.52

ADD TECHNOLOGTES (tNDtA) Lt/\^lTED

Notes to financial statements as at 31st lviarch. 2021

The sensitivity anatyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obtigation as a resutt of reasonable

The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years:

(Amount in Rs.'000)

Particulars As at 31st
Mar 2O21

As at
31st Mar 2020

Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period)
Between2and5years
Beyond 5 years

Total expected payments

669

2,867

5,61 8

9,154

1,679

2,120

5,61 8

9,417

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 6 years (31 March 2020: 6 years)

\let Interest Cost
As at 31st

Mar 2021
As at

31st lv{ar 2020
Interest Cost on Defined Benefit Obtieation
Interest lncome on Ptan Assets

1,306

55

425.42

55.53
Net lnterest Cost (lncome) 1,251.61 369.89

quantltatlve sensitivity analysis for significant assumption for defined benefit oblieations are as snowr below: (Arnount in Rs.'000)

Particu lars As at 31st March. 2021 As at 31st March, 2020
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease

Discount rate (By 0.5%)

Expected rate of increase in compensation levet of covered emptoyees (By 1%)

Withdrawal Rate (By 5%)

7,388

8,141
7 ?1q

7,928

7,194

8.088

5,9s 5

A -a7a

5,998

6,281

5,851

6,251
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42 SEGMENT REPORTING

associated revenues of the segment and manpower efforts. All other expenses which are not attributabte or altocable to segments have been disclosed as una[ocabte expenses.

that are used interchangeably amongst segments are not altocated to primary seqment.

Primary Segment information

(Amount in Rs.'000)

Particulars
ATP GPS Others Total

2020-21 2019-20 2020-21 2019-20 2020-21 2019-20 2020-21 2019-20
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs

I 

Revenue

lrotur

lltto.ubtu 
"rp"nr", 

to segment

lSegment 
Results

j 
UnatLocable expenses (net)

t^
tuDeratlng tncome

I

lOther income (net)

I

I 

Prolrt Derore taxes

t_

I 

I ax expense

lOth", .o.pr"h"nrive income to be reclassified to profit or

I 

loss in subsequent periods:

lOther 
Comprehensive lncome {OCl)

lNet 

(loss)/Cain on FVTOCI equity Securities

Net profit/loss for the year

Y:'::'l'i:r::""

Segment tiabitities

Profit allocable to segments

Unallocable tiabilities
Profit lJnallocabte

Total liabilities

57,940.02 64,194.97 31,312.11 16,630.01 16.52 2,717.35 89,26A.65 83.542.32

57,940.O2 64,194.97 31 312 tl 1 6,630.0 1 16.52 2,717.35 89,26A.65 83,542.32

43,114.85

14,825.16

47,525.65

71,811.74

(7,616.78

50,665.56

19,436.94

11,875.16

21,257.78

23,373.02

(6,743.O1

23,791.61

16.52

2,730.74

(1 3.40

62,55'1.80

26,716.85

15,05'1.69

97,915.50

(14,373.18

23,756.20

1't ,664.16

1,444.20

(38,1 29.38)

641.98

13,1 13.37

6,'t12.31

1,179.07

5.94
1,'185.01

(37,487.4O)

(1't,263.51

273.95

338.43

562.38

5,8 t 6.04

68,783.43

16,377.10

(25,661.s1

74,457.17

30,080.63
47,525.65 50.66 5.56 21 ,257.78 23,791.61 85,1 60.53 1,04,537.80

16,830.10

3,774.91

89,617.96

(19,718.63'

13,737.52

2,040.05

9,138.98
(5,108.20)

30,567.62

5,814.96
98,756.93

(24,826.83

20,605.O2 69,899.3 3 t5,777.57 4,O30.77 36,382.58 73,930.10
48,776.88

1 .08

31 ,457.26
(B34.68

48,777.95 30.622.58

85,1 60.53 1.04.552.68

Other information

Secondary Segment information

in Rs.000)

Particulars
Business seqments Total

ATP SB

2020-21 2019-20 2020-21 zo19-20 2020-21 2019-20
Depreciation and amortisation (attocabte)

Depreciation and amortisation (unallocabte)

Capitat expenditure

Non cash expenditure other than depreciation and
amortisation

4,825.77

4,825.77

306.08

7,265.56

7,265.56

8,750.00

22,049.00

3,513.62

3,513.62

3,484.73

537

2,847.57

2,847.57

70.27

8,339.40

8,339.40

358.85

3,790.81

537.01

10,1 1 3.'13

10,II3.13
735.51

735.5'l
8,820.27

22,049.OO

(Amount in Rs.'000)

Particulars Domestic Export Total
2020-21 2019-70 2020-21 2019-20 2020-21 2019-20

Revenue for the year

Segment Assets

Seqment Liabilities

89,268.64

85,160.53

85,160.53

83,542.32

1,04,537.84

1,04,552.68

89,268.64

85,160.53

85,160.53

83,542.32

1,04,537.80

1,04,552.68
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43 Fair values

The carrying value and fair value of financiaI instruments by category:

Assets and liabilities carried at amortised cost

There are no assets and liabilities which have been carried at fair value through the profit and loss account

Assets and liabilities carried at fair values through Other Comprehensive Income

The management assessed that cash and cash equivatents, trade receivabtes, trade payabtes, and other current tiabitities approximate
their carrying amounts largety due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

lnvestments are not hetd for trading, instead they are hetd for medium or long-term strategic purpose. Upon the apptication of IND AS

109, the company has choosen to designate these investments in equity instruments as at FVTOCI as the directors betieve this provides
as a more meaningfu[ presentation for medium and long term strategic investment, then reftecting changes in fair vatue immediatety
in profit or loss.

Fair value hierarchy

Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identicat assets or tiabitities
Level 2: Significant observable inputs other than quoted prices included in [eve[ '1 that are observable for the asset or tiabitity, either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectty (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: Significant unobservabte inputs for the assets or tiabitities that are not based on observabte market data (unobservabte

inputs).

(Arnount in Rs.)

Particulars Carrying Value Fair Value

As at 31st March
2021

As at 31st March
2020

As at 31st March
2021

As at 31st March
zo20

Financial assets

Other non-current financiaI Assets

Trade Receivable

Cash and cash equivalents

Other current financiaI Assets

998

27,487

ll

10,097

1 ,581

30,388
1 \49

5.493

998

77,487

5'r

10,097

1,581

30,389

1,549

5.493

Total 38,633 39,O12 38,633 39,O12

Financial liabilities
Borrowings

Trade Payabtes

Other current financiaI tiabititv

24,336
1 nq6

43,484

2,402
?

24,336

1,056

J

41, 4RA

2,402

J

Total 75,396 45,889 25,396 45,889

(Amount in Rs'000)

Particulars
Carrying Value Fair Value

As at 31st
March 2021

As at
31st March 2020

As at
31st March 2021

As at
31st March 2020

Financial assets

Investments

Less: Provision for lmpairment
45.00 52.50 45.00 52. 50

Total 45.00 5 2.50 45.00 s2.50

; i"}'.*-
i.,,"{.(}ff

*!.:Ji:ar;.
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45 Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company's principal financiat tiabilities, other than derivatives, comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payabtes, and financiaI guarantee

contracts. The main purpose of these financiat tiabitities is to finance the Group's operations and to provide guarantees to support its operations. The

Group's principat financial assets inctude loans, trade and other receivabtes, and cash and cash equivatents that derive directty from its operations. The

Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's senior management oversees the management of these risks.

Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financiaI instrument witt ftuctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk

comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk. Financiat instruments

affected by market risk include toans and borrowings, deposits, FVTOCI investments and derivative financial instruments.

The fottowing assumptions have been made in catcutating the sensitivjty anatyses:

i. The sensitivity of the retevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks. This is based on the financiaI assets and

financial liabitities hetd at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020.

lnterest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair vatue or future cash flows of a financial instrument witt ftuctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The

company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarity to the company's long-term debt obtigations with ftoating interest

rates, The company manages its interest rate risk by having a balanced portfotio of fixed and variabte rate loans and borrowings.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financiat instrument or customer contract, teading to a financiat loss. The
company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarity trade receivabtes) and from its financing activities, inctuding deposits with banks
and financiaI institutions and other financiaI instruments.

Trade receivables
Customer credit risk is managed by the Company's estabtished poticy, procedures and control retating to customer credit risk management. Credit quatity

of a customer is assessed based on an extensive credit rating scorecard and individuaI credit timits are defined in accordance with this assessment.

Outstanding customer receivabtes are regutarty monitored. At 31 March 2021, the company had 29 customer (3'l March 2070:40 ) who owed100% of
receivabtes outstandin g.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individuat costomer basis. The company evatuates the concentration of risk with respect
to trade receivabtes as [ow, as the the customer is Government body and operate in targety independent markets.

Liquidity risk
The Company monitors its risk of a shortage of funds using a tiquidity ptanning toot.

The Company's objective is to maintain a batance between continuity of funding and ftexibitity through the use of bank [oans and group company roans.
The company assessed the concentration of risk with respect to refinancing its debt and concluded it to be medium.

The tabte below summarises the maturity profile of the Company's financiat tiabitities based on contractual undiscounted payments:

(Amount in Rs.'000)

As at 31st March 2021 On Demand Less than 3 months Less than 3 months
to 12 months

/Y1ore than 1 year Total

tsorrowi ngs

Trade and other payabtes

Othercurrent liability
Other current financiaI Uabitity

9,265 15,071

1 ,056
10,694.95

3

24,336

1,056

10,695

3

Excessive risk concentration
Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in simitar business activities, or activities in the same geographicat region, or have

economic features that woutd cause their abitity to meet contractuaI obtigations to be simitarty af in economic, potiticat or other

As at 31st lilarch 2020 On Demand Less than 3 months Less than 3 months
to 1 2 months

More than 1 year Total

Borrowings

Trade and other payables

Other current tiabitity
Other current financiat Iiability

74,456 19,078

7,407

1 4,1 58.30

3

43,484

2,402
14,158

3

conditions. Concentrations indicate the retative sensitivity of the Company's performance to icular
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46 Capital management
For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capitat inctudes issued equity capital and atl other equity reserves attributable to the equity
hotders of the parent. The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to maximise the sharehotder vatue. The company rnanages its capitat
structure and makes adjustments in tight of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financiat covenants. To maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Gcompany may adjust the dividend payment to sharehotders, return capitat to sharehotders or issue new shares. The company

monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by totat capital ptus net debt. The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing

loans and borrowings, trade and other payabtes, less cash and cash equivalents.

(Amount in Rs.')

Particulars As at 31st March
2021

As at 31st March
2020

Borrowings

Trade payabtes

Other current [iability
Other current financiat tiabitity
Less: cash and cash equivalents

24,336.30

1,056.41

10,694.95

3.00
(51.40)

43,484.36

2,401.81

1 4,1 58.30

3.00
t1 \aq a\r

Net Debt 36,O39.27 58,498.O2

Equi ry
Other Equity

71,340.00
(76,821.93)

71,340.00
(32,637.97)

Capital and net debt 44,518.07 38,702.03
Gearinq ratio 44.74"1 60.18't

In order to achieve this overatl objective, the Company's capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants
attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants woutd
permit the bank to immediatety catl toans and borrowings.

No changes were made in the objectives, poticies or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020.

47 The amounts and disctosures inctuded in the financial statements of the previous year have been rectassified and regrouped whereever necessary.
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